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(1) Ambiguities in the proposal or 
other concerns (e.g., perceived defi-
ciencies, weaknesses, errors, omissions, 
or mistakes); and 

(2) Information relating to relevant 
past performance. 

(b) Communications must address ad-
verse past performance information to 
which the offeror has not previously 
had an opportunity to comment. 

Subpart E—Discussions, Proposal 
Revisions and Source Selection 

§ 636.501 What issues may be ad-
dressed in discussions? 

In a competitive acquisition, discus-
sions may include bargaining. The 
term bargaining may include: persua-
sion, alteration of assumptions and po-
sitions, give-and-take, and may apply 
to price, schedule, technical require-
ments, type of contract, or other terms 
of a proposed contract. 

§ 636.502 Why should I use discus-
sions? 

You should use discussions to maxi-
mize your ability to obtain the best 
value, based on the requirements and 
the evaluation factors set forth in the 
solicitation. 

§ 636.503 Must I notify offerors of my 
intent to use/not use discussions? 

Yes, in competitive acquisitions, the 
solicitation must notify offerors of 
your intent. You should either: 

(a) Notify offerors that discussions 
may or may not be held depending on 
the quality of the proposals received 
(except clarifications may be used as 
described in § 636.401). Therefore, the 
offeror’s initial proposal should con-
tain the offeror’s best terms from a 
cost or price and technical standpoint; 
or 

(b) Notify offerors of your intent to 
establish a competitive range and hold 
discussions. 

§ 636.504 If the solicitation indicated 
my intent was to award contract 
without discussions, but cir-
cumstances change, may I still hold 
discussions? 

Yes, you may still elect to hold dis-
cussions when circumstances dictate, 
as long as the rationale for doing so is 

documented in the contract file. Such 
circumstances might include situa-
tions where all proposals received have 
deficiencies, when fair and reasonable 
prices are not offered, or when the cost 
or price offered is not affordable. 

§ 636.505 Must a contracting agency 
establish a competitive range if it 
intends to have discussions with 
offerors? 

Yes, if discussions are held, they 
must be conducted with all offerors in 
the competitive range. If you wish to 
hold discussions and do not formally 
establish a competitive range, then you 
must hold discussions with all respon-
sive offerors. 

§ 636.506 What issues must be covered 
in discussions? 

(a) Discussions should be tailored to 
each offeror’s proposal. Discussions 
must cover significant weaknesses, de-
ficiencies, and other aspects of a pro-
posal (such as cost or price, technical 
approach, past performance, and terms 
and conditions) that could be altered or 
explained to enhance materially the 
proposal’s potential for award. You 
may use your judgment in setting lim-
its for the scope and extent of discus-
sions. 

(b) In situations where the solicita-
tion stated that evaluation credit 
would be given for technical solutions 
exceeding any mandatory minimums, 
you may hold discussions regarding in-
creased performance beyond any man-
datory minimums, and you may sug-
gest to offerors that have exceeded any 
mandatory minimums (in ways that 
are not integral to the design), that 
their proposals would be more competi-
tive if the excesses were removed and 
the offered price decreased. 

§ 636.507 What subjects are prohibited 
in discussions, communications and 
clarifications with offerors? 

You may not engage in conduct that: 
(a) Favors one offeror over another; 
(b) Reveals an offeror’s technical so-

lution, including unique technology, 
innovative and unique uses of commer-
cial items, or any information that 
would compromise an offeror’s intellec-
tual property to another offeror; 

(c) Reveals an offerors price without 
that offeror’s permission; 
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